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708-2532. Copies of non-confidential
documents filed in connection with this
investigation may be viewed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help
accessing EDIS, please email
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General
information concerning the Commission
may also be obtained by accessing its
internet server at https://www.usitc.gov.
Hearing-impaired persons are advised
that information on this matter can be
obtained by contacting the
Commission’s TDD terminal, telephone
(202) 205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On
January 22, 2025, the Commission
instituted this investigation based on a
complaint filed by Modumetal, Inc. of
Snohomish, Washington
(“Modumetal’’). 90 FR 7704 (Jan. 22,
2025). The complaint alleged violations
of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930,
as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, based upon
the importation into the United States,
the sale for importation, and the sale
within the United States after
importation of certain nanolaminate
alloy coated metal parts, components
thereof, and products containing the
same by reason of the infringement of
certain claims of U.S. Patent No.
10,253,419 and U.S. Patent No.
11,242,613. Id. at 7704. The
Commission instituted the investigation
as to certain nanolaminate alloy coated
metal parts and products containing the
same. Id. at 7704 n.1. The Commission’s
notice of investigation named the
following respondents: Parker Hannifin
Corporation of Cleveland, Ohio; and Lu
Chu Shin Yee Works Co., Ltd. of
Kaoshing City, Taiwan (collectively,
“Respondents”). Id. at 7704. The Office
of Unfair Import Investigations is not a
party to this investigation. Id.

On April 14, 2025, Modumetal moved
to amend the complaint and notice of
investigation to add the following
proposed respondents: Jiangsu DVP Hi
Press Tech Co. of Jiangsu, China;
Kunshan Huizong Machine Co. of
Jiangsu, China; Maxort Philippines Inc.
of Laguna, Philippines; Paloma Turning
Co. Pvt Ltd. of Karnataka, India;
Shaoxing Xuantong Fluid Connectors
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. of Zhejiang,
China; Overseas International Group of
Shanghai, China; and Zhejiang Unifull
Industrial Fibre Co., Ltd. of Zhejiang,
China.

On April 24, 2025, Respondents
opposed the motion, arguing that
Modumetal violated Commission Rule
210.14(b)(1) (19 CFR 210.14(b)(1)) by
failing to properly serve the motion on
the proposed respondents and for failing
to show good cause for the amendment.

On May 8, 2025, the ALJ granted the
motion as the subject ID (Order No. 13).
The ID explains that the service issue
arose because Respondents ““insisted on
redacting the names of the Proposed
Respondents from the Amended
Complaint.” ID at 5. The parties worked
together to resolve the service issue. Id.
at 5—6. The ID also finds that good cause
exists for the amendment. Id. at 7.

No petitions for Commission review
of the ID were filed. The Commission
has determined not to review the ID.

The Commission vote for this
determination took place on May 28,
2025.

The authority for the Commission’s
determination is contained in section
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part
210 of the Commission’s Rules of
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part
210).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: May 28, 2025.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2025-09993 Filed 6-2-25; 8:45 am]
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Certain Mobile Phones, Components
Thereof, and Products Containing the
Same; Notice of a Commission
Decision Not To Review an Initial
Determination Terminating the
Investigation in Its Entirety Based on
Settlement; Termination of
Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade
Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that
the U.S. International Trade
Commission has determined not to
review an initial determination (‘“ID”’)
issued by the presiding administrative
law judge (‘“ALJ”) granting a joint
motion to terminate the investigation in
its entirety based on settlement due to

a patent license agreement and
arbitration agreement.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Sidney A. Rosenzweig, Office of the
General Counsel, U.S. International
Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW,
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202)
708-2532. Copies of non-confidential
documents filed in connection with this
investigation may be viewed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help

accessing EDIS, please email
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General
information concerning the Commission
may also be obtained by accessing its
internet server at https://www.usitc.gov.
Hearing-impaired persons are advised
that information on this matter can be
obtained by contacting the
Commission’s TDD terminal, telephone
(202) 205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On
November 17, 2023, the Commission
instituted this investigation based on a
complaint filed by Telefonaktiebolaget
LM Ericsson of Stockholm, Sweden
(“Ericsson’’). 88 FR 80336 (Nov. 17,
2023). The complaint alleged violations
of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930,
as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, based upon
the importation into the United States,
the sale for importation, and the sale
within the United States after
importation of certain mobile phones,
components thereof, and products
containing same by reason of the
infringement of certain claims of U.S.
Patent No. 10,425,817 (“‘the '817
patent”); U.S. Patent No. 10,306,669
(“the ’669 patent”); U.S. Patent No.
11,317,342 (“the ’342 patent”’); and U.S.
Patent No. 11,515,893 (“the "893
patent”’). Id. The Commission’s notice of
investigation named the following
respondents: Motorola Mobility LLC of
Chicago, Illinois; Lenovo (United States)
Inc. of Morrisville, North Carolina;
Lenovo Group Limited (“LGL”) of Hong
Kong SAR; and Motorola (Wuhan)
Mobility Technologies of Wuhan, China.
The Office of Unfair Import
Investigations was also named as a party
in this investigation. Id.

On July 1, 2024, the Commission
terminated the investigation as to LGL.
Order No. 30 (June 3, 2024), unreviewed
by Notice (July 1, 2024). In addition, the
Commission terminated a number of
asserted patent claims from the
investigation. Order No. 10 (Jan. 3,
2024), unreviewed by Notice (Feb. 1,
2024); Order No. 15 (Feb. 7, 2024),
unreviewed by Notice (Mar. 7, 2024);
Order No. 31 (June 3, 2024), unreviewed
by Notice (July 1, 2024); Order No. 41
(July 9, 2024), unreviewed by Notice
(July 30, 2024). The patent claims that
remain asserted are claims 10 and 13—
15 of the ’817 patent; claims 8, 9, 15,
and 17 of the '669 patent; claims 34 and
39 of the ’342 patent; and claim 4 of the
’893 patent.

On December 17, 2024, the AL]J issued
a final ID finding a violation of section
337 as to all the remaining asserted
patent claims. The final ID did not
include an recommended determination
(“RD”) on remedy, the public interest,
and bonding.
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On April 17, 2025, the private parties
filed a joint motion to terminate the
investigation in its entirety based on
settlement due to a patent license
agreement and arbitration agreement.
On April 28, 2025, the Commission
investigative attorney filed a response in
support of the motion.

On May 8, 2025, the ALJ issued the
subject ID (Order No. 66), which grants
the joint motion. The ID finds that the
motion complies with Commission Rule
210.21(b) (19 CFR 210.21(b)). ID at 2-3.

No petitions for Commission review
of the subject ID were filed.

The Commission has determined not
to review the subject ID. The
Commission notes that the motion also
complies with Commission Rule
210.21(d) (19 CFR 210.21(d)) concerning
arbitration agreements. The
investigation is terminated.

The Commission vote for this
determination took place on May 28,
2025.

The authority for the Commission’s
determination is contained in section
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in Part
210 of the Commission’s Rules of
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part
210).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: May 29, 2025.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2025-10048 Filed 6—2—25; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

[Investigation Nos. 701-TA-767 and 731—
TA-1750 (Preliminary)]

L-lysine From China; Institution of
Antidumping and Countervailing Duty
Investigations; Scheduling of
Preliminary Phase Investigations

AGENCY: United States International
Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Commission hereby gives
notice of the institution of investigations
and commencement of preliminary
phase antidumping and countervailing
duty Investigation Nos. 701-TA-767
and 731-TA-1750 (Preliminary)
pursuant to the Tariff Act of 1930 (“‘the
Act”) to determine whether there is a
reasonable indication that an industry
in the United States is materially
injured or threatened with material
injury, or the establishment of an
industry in the United States is
materially retarded, by reason of

imports of L-lysine from China,
provided for in subheading
2922.41.0090 of the Harmonized Tariff
Schedule of the United States, that are
alleged to be sold in the United States
at less than fair value and subsidized by
the government of China. Unless the
Department of Commerce (‘“Commerce”)
extends the time for initiation, the
Commission must reach a preliminary
determination in antidumping and
countervailing duty investigations in 45
days, or in this case by July 14, 2025.
The Commission’s views must be
transmitted to Commerce within five
business days thereafter, or by July 21,
2025.
DATES: May 28, 2025.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Celia Feldpausch (202) 205-2387 and
Laurel Schwartz (202) 205-2398, Office
of Investigations, U.S. International
Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW,
Washington, DC 20436. Hearing-
impaired persons can obtain
information on this matter by contacting
the Commission’s TDD terminal on 202—
205-1810. Persons with mobility
impairments who will need special
assistance in gaining access to the
Commission should contact the Office
of the Secretary at 202—205-2000.
General information concerning the
Commission may also be obtained by
accessing its internet server (https://
www.usitc.gov). The public record for
these investigations may be viewed on
the Commission’s electronic docket
(EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Background.—These investigations
are being instituted, pursuant to
sections 703(a) and 733(a) of the Tariff
Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. 1671b(a) and
1673b(a)), in response to petitions filed
on May 28, 2025, by the Lysine Fair
Trade Coalition and its individual
members, Archer Daniels Midland
Company (Decatur, Illinois), CJ] Bio
America, Inc. (Fort Dodge, Iowa), and
Evonik Corporation (Blair, Nebraska).
For further information concerning
the conduct of these investigations and
rules of general application, consult the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, part 201, subparts A and B
(19 CFR part 201), and part 207,
subparts A and B (19 CFR part 207).
Participation in the investigations and
public service list—Persons (other than
petitioners) wishing to participate in the
investigations as parties must file an
entry of appearance with the Secretary
to the Commission, as provided in
§§201.11 and 207.10 of the
Commission’s rules, not later than seven
days after publication of this notice in
the Federal Register. Industrial users

and (if the merchandise under
investigation is sold at the retail level)
representative consumer organizations
have the right to appear as parties in
Commission antidumping duty and
countervailing duty investigations. The
Secretary will prepare a public service
list containing the names and addresses
of all persons, or their representatives,
who are parties to these investigations
upon the expiration of the period for
filing entries of appearance.

Limited disclosure of business
proprietary information (BPI) under an
administrative protective order (APO)
and BPI service list.—Pursuant to
§207.7(a) of the Commission’s rules, the
Secretary will make BPI gathered in
these investigations available to
authorized applicants representing
interested parties (as defined in 19
U.S.C. 1677(9)) who are parties to the
investigations under the APO issued in
the investigations, provided that the
application is made not later than seven
days after the publication of this notice
in the Federal Register. A separate
service list will be maintained by the
Secretary for those parties authorized to
receive BPI under the APO.

Conference.—The Office of
Investigations will hold a staff
conference in connection with the
preliminary phase of these
investigations beginning at 9:30 a.m. on
Wednesday, June 18, 2025. Requests to
appear at the conference should be
emailed to preliminaryconferences@
usitc.gov (DO NOT FILE ON EDIS) on or
before noon on Monday, June 16, 2025.
Please provide an email address for each
conference participant in the email.
Information on conference procedures,
format, and participation, including
guidance for requests to appear as a
witness via videoconference, will be
available on the Commission’s Public
Calendar (Calendar (USITC) | United
States International Trade Commission).
A nonparty who has testimony that may
aid the Commission’s deliberations may
request permission to participate by
submitting a short statement.

Please note the Secretary’s Office will
accept only electronic filings during this
time. Filings must be made through the
Commission’s Electronic Document
Information System (EDIS, https://
edis.usitc.gov). No in-person paper-
based filings or paper copies of any
electronic filings will be accepted until
further notice.

Written submissions.—As provided in
§§201.8 and 207.15 of the
Commission’s rules, any person may
submit to the Commission on or before
5:15 p.m. on June 24, 2025, a written
brief containing information and
arguments pertinent to the subject
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